
 

 Board of Directors  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

 

 
Agenda Packet 

 

 

 
 

Other materials, exhibits, and presentations may be 
distributed on the day of the Board Meeting.  

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 4.a 

Approval of June 6, 2019 Board Workshop Minutes  
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:    Minutes 

Submitted By:   Executive Director  

Recommended Action: Move to approve the June 6, 2019 Board Workshop Minutes 

 

 
Executive Summary: 

n/a 

 
Background: 

n/a 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

n/a  

 
Attachments: 

• Exhibit A – Minutes of the June 6, 2019 Board Workshop 

 

 

 

 



EASTERN TULE 
GROUNDWATER 
SUSTAINABILITY 
AGENCY  
JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY 

MINUTES OF THE   
ETGSA BOARD WORKSHOP 

HELD JUNE 6, 019  

At approximately, 9:00 a.m. on June 6, 2019, at Research for Hire, 1696 S. Leggett St., Porterville, 
California, Chairman Borba called to order the meeting of the Board Workshop of the Eastern Tule 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency Joint Powers Authority (“ETGSA”). 

Members Present:   Eric Borba Pete Vander Poel (Alternate) 
Steve Kisling   Monte Reyes 
Dyson Schneider John Corkins 
Matthew Leider 

Members Absent: Dennis Townsend Loren Wheaton 
Curt Holmes 

Others Present: Bryce McAteer Aubrey Mauritson 
Sean Geivet  Nick Keller 
Garrett Busch  Tim Gobler 
Michael Knight Mike Reed 
Phil Pierre  John Michael Domondon 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chairman Eric Borba announced the public comment period.  No public comment was received. 

BROWN ACT REVIEW 

Legal Counsel Will Provide a Review of Brown Act Requirements 

Legal Counsel, Aubrey Mauritson, provide a report on the Brown Act Requirements.  Attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A is a copy of her presentation. 

*Monte Reyes arrived at this time.

AGENCY STRUCTURE, DRAFT FY20 BUDGET, AND FUTURE FUNDING 

Staff and Legal Counsel Will Provide a Review of the Current Organizational Structure 
of the ETGSA, Discuss the Draft Fiscal Year 2020 Budget, and Describe Future Agency 
Funding Options 

Agenda Item #4.a 
Exhibit A



                
 

2 
 

 
Executive Director McAteer and Legal Counsel Aubrey Mauritson provided a report on the 
current organizational structure, draft Fiscal Year 2020 budget, and future funding. The report 
was part of the Exhibit B presentation, attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 
 
*Matt Leider arrived during this Agenda Item. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the Proposition 218 process for groundwater extractions.   
 
Executive Director McAteer continued with his presentation.  Discussion ensued regarding 
ETGSA’s budget compared to other neighboring GSAs.  The following topics were also 
discussed:  the possibility of sharing responsibilities with the budget; costs of 218 election; 
reserve accounts; and membership and blueprint for Friant.    
 
Executive Director McAteer continued with his presentation on future funding.  Discussion 
ensued regarding future funding of the ETGSA – specifically proposition 218 procedures and 
processes.   
 
 
GSP DEVELOMENT STUDY SESSION 
 

Study Session to Discuss the Drafting of the GSP and Review Substantive Policy 
Considerations Related to Potential Projects and Management Actions 

 
Executive Director McAteer continued with his presentation, attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit B, to discuss the current drafting of the GSP and substantive policy 
considerations. Additionally, he distributed a summary matrix of committee recommendations on 
various policy matters, attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding monitoring wells and the monitoring plan.   
 
Executive Director McAteer continued his presentation.  Discussion ensued regarding 
sustainable yield within the subbasin and pace of ramp down.   
 
Public comment was received from Tim Gobbler.   
 
Executive Director McAteer continued his presentation.  Discussion ensued regarding previous 
recommendations by the board and future recommendations by the board necessary for GSP 
completion.  Discussion ensued regarding transparency issues regarding prices paid on private 
transactions of water.   
 
Executive Director McAteer continued with his presentation.  Discussion ensued regarding the 
example interim nominal fee & set-aside slide of the presentation.   
 
After taking a short break, the board reconvened.  Executive Director McAteer continued with 
his presentation on policy discussions related to allocations.  Discussion ensued regarding the 
consolidation of several public water systems with the City of Porterville.   



                
 

3 
 

 
Executive Director McAteer continued his presentation with historical and future estimated 
production.  Discussion ensued regarding a dormant sustainable yield pool.   
 
Public comment was received from Tim Gobbler.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the grower group proposal for distribution of the sustainable yield.  
Discussion ensued regarding allocations to non-irrigated lands and property values.  Discussion 
ensued regarding gross acreage and historic use in the Tule Subbasin and the feasibility of 
various approaches.  Discussion ensued regarding the Mojave and Antelope adjudicated basins. 
 
Executive Director McAteer continued his presentation.     
 
Discussion ensued regarding the board’s previous recommendations, the concept of a municipal 
pool, and what plans neighboring GSAs are planning to do regarding transitional water.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Borba adjourned the 
meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
    _________ 
Bryce McAteer, Executive Director 



ETGSA Board Meeting 
July 2, 2019 

Agenda Item 4.b 

Approval of June 6, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

Subject: Minutes 

Submitted By:  Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Move to approve the June 6, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

Executive Summary: 

n/a 

Background: 

n/a 

Fiscal Impact: 

n/a 

Attachments: 

• Exhibit A – Minutes of the June 6, 2019 Board Meeting



EASTERN TULE 
GROUNDWATER 
SUSTAINABILITY 
AGENCY  
JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

HELD JUNE 6, 2019        

At approximately, 2:00 p.m. on June 6, 2019, at the City of Porterville, Council Chambers, 
Chairman Eric Borba, called to order the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Eastern Tule 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency Joint Powers Authority (“ETGSA”). 

Members Present:  John Corkins Eric Borba 
Lorren Wheaton Pete Vander Poel (Alternate) 
Matthew Leider  Steve Kisling 
Monte Reyes   Dyson Schneider 

Members Absent:  Dennis Townsend Curt Holmes 

Others Present: Bryce McAteer Val Guzman 
Aubrey Mauritson David Payne 
Bruce Kelsey  Douglas Deflitch 
Alan Becker  Bill Samarin 
Michael Knight Nick Keller 
Sean Geivet  Charmin Costa 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chairman Eric Borba announced the public comment period.  No public comment was received.  

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Executive Director McAteer announced that meeting-related materials were available in the back 
of the chambers. He also announced that DWR has accepted ETGSA’s non-material boundary 
changes.   

MINUTES 

Approval of May 2, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

Director Kisling moved for approval of the May 2, 2019 board meeting minutes.  The motion 
was seconded by Director Leider. With the exception of Alternate Director Vander Poel and 
Director Reyes, each of whom abstained, the board unanimously approved the motion.   

Agenda Item #4.b
Exhibit A



                
 

2 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION 
 

Consider Adoption of Revised ETGSA Worksite Employee Handbook 
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the revised ETGSA Worksite Employee 
Handbook.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #5a is a copy of his 
report and, as Exhibit A, the proposed handbook. 
 
Director Corkins moved and Director Leider seconded to approve the revised ETGSA Worksite 
Employee Handbook.  The board unanimously approved. 
 

Consider Approval of 4Creeks Technical Assistance Scope of Work and Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the 4Creeks technical assistance scope of work 
and budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as 
Agenda Item #5b is a copy of his report and, as Exhibit A, the proposed budget.   
 
Director Corkins moved and Director Leider seconded to approve the 4Creeks Technical 
Assistance Scope of Work and budget for FY2019-20.  The board unanimously approved the 
motion. 
 

Consider Approval of Amended and Restated Agreement Between ETGSA and TBID for 
Employee Services 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the proposed agreement between ETGSA and 
TBID.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #5c is a copy of his report 
and, as Exhibit A, a copy of the amended and restated agreement for employee services. 
Executive Director McAteer noted that the agreement had already been approved by TBID’s 
Board.   
 
Director Corkins moved and Alternate Director Vander Poel seconded to approve the amended 
and restated agreement for employee services between ETGSA and TBID.  The board 
unanimously approved the motion. 
 

Consider Approval of Amendment to Office Lease Between ETGSA and 881 W. 
Professional Center 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on an amendment to ETGSA’s current office 
lease with 881 W. Professional Center.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as 
Agenda Item #5d is a copy of his report and, as Exhibit A, a copy of the proposed amendment.   
 
Director Leider moved and Director Corkins seconded to approve the amendment to the office 
lease between ETGSA and 881 W. Professional Center.  The board unanimously approved the 
motion. 
  



                
 

3 
 

Consider Authorizing Staff to Submit a General Plan Referral Application for the Draft 
GSP to Tulare County and to Enter into Associated Indemnification Agreement 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the proposed General Plan Referral application 
for the draft GSP and associated Indemnification Agreement.  Attached hereto and incorporated 
hereto as Agenda Item #5e is a copy of his report and, as Exhibit A, a copy of the proposed 
General Plan Referral application, and, as Exhibit B, a copy of the indemnification agreement. 
 
Discussion ensued amongst the Board regarding the need to undertake a General Plan Referral, 
and whether other GSAs were also considering this. 
 
Director Corkins moved, subject to legal review of counsel, to approve submission of the 
General Plan Referral for the Draft GSP to Tulare County and to enter into the associated 
indemnification agreement.  Alternate Director Vander Poel seconded.  The board unanimously 
approved the motion, subject to the legal review of counsel. 
 
 
STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 

Report on Ongoing ETGSA Outreach Efforts 
 

Executive Director McAteer provided a report on recent outreach and community engagement 
efforts.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #6a is a copy of his 
report.   
 
Discussion amongst the board ensued regarding attendance of some of the outreach efforts.  
 
 Receive and Discuss ETWAG Inc. Economic Analysis 
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the ETWAG Inc. Economic Analysis.  
Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #6b is a copy of his report and, as 
Exhibit A, a copy of the economic analysis. 
 

Receive and Discuss FWA Correspondence “Re: Notice of Requirement that 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Identify the Effects of Subsidence on the Friant-Kern 
Canal…” dated May 28, 2019 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the Friant Water Authority (FWA) 
correspondence dated May 28, 2019.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda 
Item #6c is a copy of his report and, as Exhibit A, a copy of the correspondence received.  
 
Public comment was received from Doug Deflitch.  
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Receive Finance Committee Monthly Reports 



                
 

4 
 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as 
Agenda Item #7a is a copy of the Finance Committee Monthly report. The Executive Director 
also gave a verbal report on the meeting of the Finance Committee held today, wherein he 
reported that the Finance Committee had approved the Minutes of the Committee’s May 14, 
2019 meeting, recommended approval of the 4Creeks technical scope of work proposal, 
recommended approval of the lease amendment with 881 W. Professional Center, recommended 
approval of the proposed ETGSA FY20 Budget with some amendments, and recommended 
payment of the bills. 
 

Receive Joint Stakeholder and Executive Committee Monthly Reports 
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as 
Agenda Item #7b is a copy of the Joint Stakeholder and Executive Committee Monthly reports.   
 
 
BILLS AND WARRANTS 
 

Review the Financial Statements; Consider Ratification of Bills Paid and Approval of 
Bills to be Paid 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on current financial standing and accounts 
payable.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #8a, is a copy of the 
financial reports and accounts payable.     
 
Director Kisling moved and Director Leider seconded to ratify the bills paid and approve bills to 
be paid.  The board unanimously approved. 
 
 Consider Approval of ETGSA Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget 
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget.  Attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #8b is a copy of his report and, as Exhibit 
A, a copy of the proposed Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget.     
 
The Finance Committee recommend the following additions to the Budget: (1) an increase of 
other general association dues from $0.00 to $30,000.00; (2) an increase of other professional 
services from $100,000 to $200,000 in order to accommodate a potential proposition 218 
election; and (3) an increase from $125,000 to $175,000 for DMS Development & Expense. 
Discussion ensued regarding a contingency/reserve and whether to do a fourth quarterly call for 
funds.   
 
Director Kisling moved to approve the budget as modified and to include a call for funds for half 
of the fourth quarter amount for Fiscal Year 2019.  The motion was seconded by Director 
Corkins.  Discussion ensued regarding the timing of budget distribution.  Thereafter, the motion 
was unanimously approved. 
 



                
 

5 
 

Consider Approval of Tulare County Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Form and Approval 
of Agency Authorized Signatories for Disbursement of Funds  

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on Tulare County Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget 
Form and agency authorized signatories for disbursement of funds.  Attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #8c is a copy of the report. Included in his report were 
Exhibit A, a copy of the correspondence from Tulare County regarding the upcoming fiscal year, 
Exhibit B, a copy of the draft Tulare County Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Form for ETGSA, and as 
Exhibit C, a copy of the list of ETGSA’s current authorized signatories. Executive Director 
McAteer recommended that the authorized signatories remain the Board Chair, Board Vice 
Chair, Members of the Finance Committee, and Secretary. 
 
Director Corkins moved and Alternate Director Vander Poel seconded to approve the Tulare 
County Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Form as modified by the board’s previous motion and to 
approve the agency authorized signatories for disbursement of funds.  The board unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
TULE SUBBASIN AND REGIONAL REPORTS AND ITEMS 
 

Report on Tule Subbasin Coordination and TH&Co Task Items 
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the Tule Subbasin Coordination and TH&Co’s 
task items.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #9a is a copy of his 
report. Included in his report were Exhibit A, a TH&Co presentation describing Tule Subbasin 
Projects and Management actions, and as Exhibit B, a presentation describing future water 
budgets and the results of initial FPSRs. 
 
Discussion ensued amongst the Board regarding a ramp down scenario that would maintain no 
change for 10 years and then a 10 year ramp down, the future water budget, changing the 
ETGSA’s ramp down, and what other ramp downs might be considered. Discussion ensued 
regarding the proposed progressive scenario recommended by the managers and regarding the 
ramp down percentages associated with the progressive ramp down.   
 
Public comment was received from Sean Geivet.   
 
Consulting Engineer DeGroot provided a report on the future water budget scenarios. Consulting 
Engineer DeGroot explained that, at this point in the process, the Subbasin needs to identify the 
future water budget in order to determine what we are going to mitigate and how.  DeGroot also 
explained that such identification will provide Tom Harder with needed direction. DeGroot 
explained that ETGSA is able to run modified variations of the scenarios presented by Tom 
Harder.  DeGroot’s recommendation is allow the process to move forward with Tom Harder’s 
Progressive Scenario 2, but create a parallel process through our own contract.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding choosing model runs which are as close as possible to the 
recommendations which have previously been provided by the board.  
 



                
 

6 
 

Public comment was received from Garrett Busch.   
 
Consulting Engineer DeGroot reported how the future how budgets are related to sustainable 
management criteria.   
 
Discussion ensued amongst the Board regarding requesting that ETGSA’s progressive ramp 
down scenario within the Subbasin Progressive Scenario be updated. Executive Director 
McAteer suggested that he could make such a request, but that it would require subbasin 
consensus and additional expenditures. Director Corkins directed staff to work with the subbasin 
to see if such an adjustment could be made and, referring to the 5 year ramp down periods and 
percentages of projected over-pumping, suggested ranges including 90%/85%/30%/10% and 
90%/80%/30%/0%. It was discussed that ETGSA may need to bear the cost for this last minute 
change. 
 

Report on Inter-Basin and Other Regional Stakeholder Coordination  
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on inter-basin and other regional stakeholder 
coordination.  Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #9b is a copy of his 
report.   
 
 
GSP DRAFTING 
 

Report on Progress of ETGSA GSP Drafting 
 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on the progress of the drafting of the GSP.  
Attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #10a is a copy of his report.  
Included in his report was Exhibit A, a presentation describing GSP development and adoption. 
 

Review Status and Progress on GSP Policy Matters; Board May Take Action to Provide 
Direction to Staff on Policy Matters. 

 
Executive Director McAteer provided a report on GSP policy matters.  Attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference as Agenda Item #10b is a copy of his report. Included in his report 
were Exhibit A, a presentation describing new policy matters and staff recommendations, and 
Exhibit B, a matrix of committee recommendations made on various policy matters. 
 
Executive Director McAteer then began the presentation (Exhibit A). Discussion ensued amongst 
the Board regarding the first set of staff recommendations on the mechanisms and functioning of 
a sharing system. 
 
Director Corkins moved to accept staff’s recommendations regarding the mechanisms and 
functioning of a sharing system, with the exception of staff Recommendation No. 4 regarding the 
reporting of prices paid.  Director Kisling seconded the motion. 
 
Public comment was received from Bill Samarin.  
 



                
 

7 
 

The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning the potential reporting of prices paid as a result of share transfer.  
Specifically, the board discussed whether prices should be reported publicly.   
 
Public comment was received from Bill Samarin. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding some level of transparency regarding the private transactions.   
 
No action was taken on the issue of whether purchase prices should be reported publicly.   
 
Public comment was received from Bill Samarin.   
 
Executive Director McAteer then presented on evaluating transfer impacts as presented on page 
four of Agenda Item #10B, Exhibit A.   
 
Director Corkins moved to accept both staff recommendations as presented in the agenda packet, 
with the exception of volumetric set asides. The motion was seconded by Director Leider and 
unanimously approved. 
 
Executive Director McAteer continued with his presentation as presented on page eight of 
Agenda Item #10b Exhibit A.  
 
Discussion amongst the board ensued regarding the various recommendations from staff. 
 
Distribution of native yield among eligible users within ETGSA was discussed, along with the 
M&I pool.   
 
Public comment was received from Mike Reed.   
 
Further discussion ensued regarding the pool concept.   
 
Director Corkins moved to adopt an M&I pool and gross acreage distribution for all other lands.  
Director Kisling seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning how to calculate the pool.  Discussion ensued regarding the pool’s 
impact to agricultural and whether it may be beneficial. 
 
Public comment was received from Bill Samarin. 
 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Public comment was received from Bill Samarin. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding how transitional volumes of water (e.g. Transitional Volume 
Options) should be made available to eligible users within ETGSA. 
 



                
 

8 
 

Director Corkins moved to accept the proposed distribution of transitional water proposed by the 
executive committee and stakeholders, under which such distribution shall treat all irrigated 
lands the same.  Alternate Director Vander Poel seconded.  The motion was unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
 

Reschedule ETGSA July Board Meeting 
  
Executive Director McAteer recommended to reschedule the July board meeting to July 2, 2019 
at 2:00 p.m. 
 
 Reschedule ETGSA August Board Meeting 
 
 Executive Director McAteer recommended to reschedule the August board meeting to August 
13, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
[Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)] 
Number of Potential Cases:  Two 

 
The board of directors, while in closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(2), met with General Counsel Aubrey Mauritson regarding two potential items of 
anticipated litigation.   
 
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

 
Report Action Taken in Closed Session Required by Government Code 54957.1 

 
The board of directors came back into open session.  Chairman Borba reported there was no 
reportable action from closed session. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Since there was no further business to come before the Committee, Chairman Borba adjourned 
the meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
    _________ 
Bryce McAteer, Executive Director 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.a 

Review Agency Insurance renewals and alternative 
Insurance Policy Proposal  

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:    ETGSA Insurance Policies and Renewals 

Submitted By:   Executive Director  

Recommended Action: Defer to Board Direction 

 
Executive Summary: 

ETGSA’s insurance policies through Glatfelter Insurance Group (serviced via Buckman-Mitchell 
[BMI]) will renew on August 8, 2019. Staff solicited a proposal from Walter Mortensen 
Insurance (WMI) for comparison and consideration by the Board. Staff recommends the Board 
consider maintaining our current policies (no action) or cancelling current policies in favor of 
accepting the proposal (see Exhibit A) from WMI (Action – Authorize Staff to cancel existing 
insurance policies, except for Workers Compensation, with BMI and to accept the Proposal 
prepared by WMI).  

The table below compares the insurance premium prices: 

Policy BMI – Premium* WMI - Premium 
Property $250 $500 
Crime $379 $500 
General Liability $2891 $3250 
Public Officials & Management $2180 $1350 
Business Auto $0 (included in GL) $0 (included in GL) 
Cyber $0 (included in GL) $0 (included in POML) 
Excess Liability ($5mm) $3866 $2527 
Terrorism  n/a $33 
Other Fees n/a $200 
TOTAL $9566 $8360 

*Premiums quoted for BMI are from last year; Renewals for the next year (2019-2020) are 
anticipated to be similar or greater 



ETGSA Board Meeting 
July 2, 2019 

Note - Deductibles for both policies are generally comparable, ranging between $0 to $1000 per 
claim or occurrence. 

Background: 

ETGSA currently maintains Property, GL, POML, Crime, Cyber, and Excess Liability Insurance 
through Glatfelter Insurance Group (note: Glatfelter was recently acquired by AIG), serviced via 
BMI. These policies are due for renewal on August 8, 2019. Staff has solicited a proposal 
through Walter Mortensen Insurance for comparison and consideration by the Board of 
Directors. The WMI presented a proposal from Allied Community Insurance Services LLC. 

Note – ETGSA also maintains Workers Compensation (WI) insurance through BMI, but Staff did 
not seek to solicit proposals for WC at this time. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Potential – Staff anticipates that opting for the WMI Insurance Proposal will decrease overall 
insurance costs for ETGSA by approximately $1000 or more. 

Attachments: 

• Exhibit A – WMI Insurance Proposal



PROGRAM MANAGER
www.alliedpublicrisk.com

Allied Community Insurance Services, LLC
Agency License No. 733176

CA License No. 0L01269

INSURANCE PROPOSAL
Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

EFFECTIVE DATE
8/6/2019

PRESENTED BY:
Walter Mortensen Insurance

Agenda Item #5.a
Exhibit A



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 2 of 13

P R E M I U M  S U M M A R Y
NOTE: This proposal is prepared from information supplied to us on the application submitted by your insurance broker. It 
may or may not contain all terms requested on the application. Proposed coverages are provided by the Allied Public Risk 
WaterPlus policy forms and are subject to the terms, exclusions, conditions and limitations of those policy forms. Actual 
policies should be reviewed for specific details. Specimen policies are available from your insurance broker.

PAGE COVERAGE SECTION PREMIUM

3-7 SECTION 1.  PROPERTY
(Property, Equipment Breakdown & Mobile Equipment) $ 500.00

8 SECTION 2.  COMMERCIAL CRIME $ 500.00

9-10 SECTION 3.  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $ 3,250.00

11 SECTION 4.  PUBLIC OFFICIALS & MANAGEMENT LIABILITY (POML)
(Wrongful Acts, Employment Practices, Employee Benefits, Privacy & Network Risk) $ 1,350.00

12 SECTION 5.  BUSINESS AUTO $ N/A

13 SECTION 6.  COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY $ 2,527.00

TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM
(excludes state-imposed taxes, surcharges, and fees) $ 8,127.00

TERRORISM PREMIUM $ 33.00

FULLY EARNED POLICY FEE $ 200.00

STATE-IMPOSED TAXES, SURCHARGES, AND FEES $ N/A

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE*
*Payment is due in accordance with the producer agreement. $ 8,360.00

NOTES:



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 3 of 13

S E C T I O N  1 .   P R O P E R T Y *
*IS THIS SECTION INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? Yes

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
Special Causes of Loss
Proprietary
Integrated

LIMITS:
Blanket Property:
(Real Property & Business Personal Property) $7,500

Blanket Coverage Extension: 
A separate blanket limit that applies to the following coverages: Business Income,
Extended Business Income, Commandeered Property, Civil Authority, Extra Expense,
Tenant Leasehold Interest, Electronic Data, Preservation of Property.

N/A

Equipment Breakdown / Boiler & Machinery: N/A
Mobile Equipment (Scheduled): N/A
Mobile Equipment (unscheduled, maximum $10,000 any one item): $25,000
Mobile Equipment (borrowed, rented & leased): $50,000
Earthquake (earth movement excluded): N/A
Flood Zone AE: N/A
Flood Zone X (unshaded): N/A

DEDUCTIBLES:
$1,000 Property
$1,000 Mobile Equipment
N/A Equipment Breakdown (aboveground & less than 50 feet belowground)
N/A Equipment Breakdown (greater than 50 feet belowground)
N/A Earthquake (earth movement excluded)
N/A Flood Zone X (per occurrence)
N/A Flood Zone AE1 (per occurrence)
N/A Flood Zone AE1 (per damaged structure / per occurrence)

       1the greater of the deductibles will be applied
N/A Wind/Hail2 (per occurrence)
N/A Wind/Hail2 (per damaged structure / per occurrence)

       2the greater of the deductibles will be applied

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS:
Blanket Policy Limits
Blanket Coverage Extension Limits
No Coinsurance Penalty
Equipment Breakdown
Broad Definition of Covered Property
Proprietary Coverage Extensions

VALUATION:
Replacement Cost: Real Property & Business Personal Property
Actual Cash Value: Mobile Equipment 
Actual Loss Sustained: Loss of Income & Expenses
Market Price: Fine Arts



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 4 of 13

SPECIAL COVERAGES:

New Locations Or Newly Constructed Property:
Pays up to $1,000,000 for your new real property while being built on or off described premises as 
well as real property you acquire, lease or operate at locations other than the described premises; and 
business personal property located at new premises.

Utility Services – Direct Damage, Business Income & Expense:
Pays up to $250,000 for covered property damaged by an interruption in utility service to the 
described premises. The interruption in utility service must result from direct physical loss or damage 
by a Covered Cause of Loss and does not apply to loss or damage to electronic data, including 
destruction or corruption of electronic data. Separate limits apply to Direct Damage and Business 
Income/Expense Expense.

Pollution Remediation Expenses:
Pays up to $100,000 or $250,000 for remediation expenses resulting from a Covered Causes of Loss 
or Specified Cause of Loss occurring during the policy period and reported within 180 days. Covered 
Causes of Loss means risks of direct physical loss unless the loss is excluded or limited by the 
Property Coverage Form. Specified Cause of Loss means the following: fire; lightning; explosion; 
windstorm or hail; smoke; aircraft or vehicles; riot or civil commotion; vandalism; leakage from fire 
extinguishing equipment; sinkhole collapse; volcanic action; falling objects; weight of snow; ice or 
sleet; water damage; and equipment breakdown.

SCADA Upgrades:
Pays up to $100,000 to upgrade your scheduled SCADA system after direct physical loss from a 
Covered Cause of Loss. The upgrade is in addition to its replacement cost.  SCADA means the 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system used in water and wastewater treatment and 
distribution to monitor leaks, waterflow, water analysis, and other measurable items necessary to 
maintain operations.

Contract Penalties:
Pays up to $100,000 for contract penalties you are required to pay due to your failure to deliver your 
product according to contract terms solely as a result of direct physical loss or damage by a Covered 
Cause of Loss to Covered Property.

Contamination:
Pays up to $100,000 for loss or damage to covered property because of contamination as a result of a 
Covered Cause of Loss. Contamination means direct damage to real property and business personal 
property caused by contact or mixture with ammonia, chlorine, or any chemical used in the water and / or 
wastewater treatment process.

Property In Transit:
Pays up to $100,000 for direct physical loss or damage to covered property while in transit more than 
1000 feet from the described premises. Shipments by mail must be registered for covered to apply. 
Electronic data processing property and fine arts are excluded.

Unintentional Errors:
Pays up to $100,000 for any unintentional error or omission you make in determining or reporting 
values or in describing the covered property or covered locations.



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 5 of 13

KEY DEFINITIONS

Real Property:
The buildings, items or structures described in the Declarations that you own or that you have leased or 
rented from others in which you have an insurable interest. This includes:

Aboveground piping;
Aboveground and belowground penstock;
Additions under construction;
Alterations and repairs to the buildings or structures;
Buildings;
Business personal property owned by you that is used to maintain or service the real property or 
structure or its premises, including fire-extinguishing equipment; outdoor furniture, floor coverings 
and appliances used for refrigerating, ventilating, cooking, dishwashing or laundering;
Completed additions;
Exterior signs, meaning neon, automatic, mechanical, electric or other signs either attached to the 
outside of a building or structure, or standing free in the open;
Fixtures, including outdoor fixtures;
Glass which is part of a building or structure;
Light standards;
Materials, equipment, supplies and temporary structures you own or for which you are responsible, 
on the premises or in the open (including property inside vehicles) within 1000 feet of the premises, 
used for making additions, alterations or repairs to buildings or structures at the premises;
Paved surfaces such as sidewalks, patios or parking lots;
Permanently installed machinery and equipment;
Permanent storage tanks;
Solar panels;
Submersible pumps, pump motors and engines; 
Underground piping located on or within 1000 feet of premises described in the Declarations;
Underground vaults and machinery.

Business Personal Property:
The property you own that is used in your business including:

Furniture and fixtures;
Machinery and equipment;
Computer equipment;
Communication equipment;
Labor materials or services furnished or arranged by you on personal property of others;
Stock;
Your use interest as tenant in improvements and betterments.
Leased personal property for which you have a contractual responsibility to insure.

Pollution Conditions:
The discharge, dispersal, release, seepage, migration, or escape of any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal 
irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals, minerals, chemical 
elements and waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 6 of 13

KEY DEFINITIONS (continued)

Remediation Expenses:
Expenses incurred for or in connection with the investigation, monitoring, removal, disposal, treatment, 
or neutralization of pollution conditions to the extent required by: (1) Federal, state or local laws, 
regulations or statutes, or any subsequent amendments thereof enacted to address pollution conditions; 
and (2) a legally executed state voluntary program governing the cleanup of “pollution conditions.

Outdoor Property: 
Fixed or permanent structures that are outside covered real property including but not limited to:

Historical markers or flagpoles;
Sirens, antennas, towers, satellite dishes, or similar structures and their associated equipment;
Exterior signs not located at a premises;
Fences or retaining walls;
Storage sheds, garages, pavilions or other similar buildings or structures not located at a premises;
Dumpsters, concrete trash containers, or permanent recycling bins;
Hydrants; or
Electric utility power transmission and distribution lines and related equipment owned by the insured.

Equipment Breakdown:
Direct damage to mechanical, electrical or pressure systems as follows:

Mechanical breakdown including rupture or bursting caused by centrifugal force;
Artificially generated electrical current, including electrical arcing, that disturbs electrical devices, 
appliances or wires;
Explosion of steam boilers, steam piping, steam engines or steam turbines owned or leased by you, 
or operated under your control;
Loss or damage to steam boilers, steam pipes, steam engines or steam turbines; or
Loss or damage to hot water boilers or other water heating equipment;
If covered electrical equipment requires drying out as a result of a flood, we will pay for the direct 
expenses for such drying out.
None of the following are covered objects as respects to equipment breakdown:
a. Insulating or refractory material;
b. Buried vessel or piping;
c. Sewer piping, piping forming a part of a fire protection system or water piping other than:

(1) Feed water piping between any boiler and its feed pump or injector;
(2) Boiler condensate return piping; or
(3) Water piping forming a part of refrigerating and air conditioning vessels and piping used 

for cooling, humidifying or space heating purposes;
d. Structure, foundation, cabinet or compartment containing the object;
e. Power shovel, dragline, excavator, vehicle, aircraft, floating vessel or structure, penstock, draft 

tube or well-casing;
f. Conveyor, crane, elevator, escalator or hoist, but not excluding any electrical machine or 

electrical apparatus mounted on or used with this equipment; and
g. Felt, wire, screen, die, extrusion, late, swing hammer, grinding disc, cutting blade, cable chain, 

belt, rope, clutch late, brake pad, non-metallic part or any part or tool subject to frequent, 
periodic replacement.



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 7 of 13

PROPERTY SUBLIMITS:
Coverage         Limit
Accounts Receivable $500,000
Valuable Papers and Records $500,000
Contamination $100,000
Tools and Equipment Owned by Your Employees $5,000
Personal Effects and Property of Others $5,000
Outdoor Property (unscheduled) $25,000
New Locations or Newly Constructed Property $1,000,000
Business Personal Property at New Locations $1,000,000
Utility Services - Direct Damage $250,000
Utility Services – Business Income and Extra Expense $250,000
Dependent Business Premises $250,000
Property at Other Locations $250,000
Pollution Remediation Expense 
(specified cause of loss) $250,000

Pollution Remediation Expense (covered cause of loss) $100,000
Contract Penalties $100,000
SCADA Upgrades $100,000
Property in Transit $100,000
Backup/Overflow of Water from Sewer, Drain, Sump $100,000
Fine Arts $25,000
Limited Coverage for “Fungus”, Wet Rot or Dry Rot $25,000
Trees, Shrubs & Plants (maximum $1,000 any one item) $25,000
Indoor and Outdoor Signs (unscheduled) $25,000
Arson Reward $10,000
Fire Department Service Charge $5,000
Non-Owned Detached Trailers $5,000
Cost of Inventory or Adjustment $5,000
Patterns, Dies, Molds, Forms $2,500
Fire Protection Devices $2,500
Debris Removal 25% of scheduled limit
Ordinance or Law Provision 25% of scheduled limit

NOTES:
Premium is calculated from attached property schedule; review property schedule for coverage and limit adequacy. 
Equipment Breakdown, Earthquake and Flood coverages are excluded.



INSURED: Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 8/6/2019         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 8 of 13

S E C T I O N  2 .   C O M M E R C I A L  C R I M E *

*IS THIS SECTION INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? Yes

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
Proprietary
Integrated

RATING BASIS:
On file with underwriter
Non auditable

LIMITS:

EMPLOYEE
THEFT

FORGERY
OR

ALTERATION

INSIDE THE PREMISES
Theft of Money
and Securities

INSIDE THE PREMISES 
Robbery or Safe Burglary

or Other Property

OUTSIDE
THE

PREMISES
COMPUTER

FRAUD

FUNDS
TRANSFER

FRAUD

MONEY ORDERS
& COUNTERFEIT

PAPER CURRENCY

$250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $5,000 $250,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

DEDUCTIBLE:
$1,000 each claim

DESIGNATED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN(S):
     
     

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS:
Separate Limits Apply to Each Coverage
Coverage Extended to Directors and Authorized Volunteers
Faithful Performance 

NOTES:
     













Policyholder Terrorism Disclosure  Page 1 of 1

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended via the Program 
Reauthorization Act of 2015, that you have a right to purchase insurance coverage for losses resulting 
from acts of terrorism, as defined in Section 102(1) of the Act: The term “act of terrorism” means any act 
that is certified by the Secretary of the Treasury – in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security, 
and the United States Attorney General—to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property or infrastructure; to have resulted in dam-age within the United States, 
or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States 
mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the 
civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States 
Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES RESULTING 
FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM SUCH LOSSES MAY BE PARTIALLY REIMBURSED BY THE 
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR 
POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS 
EXCLUSION FOR NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THIS FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 
GENERALLY REIMBURSES [85%THROUGH 2015; 84% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2016; 83% BEGINNING 
ON JANUARY 1, 2017; 82% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2018; 81% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2019 AND 
80% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2020] OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE 
STATUTORILY ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDING THE 
COVERAGE. THE PREMIUM CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES NOT 
INCLUDE ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS COVERED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 
UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED, CONTAINS A 
$100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS INSURERS’ LIABILITY 
FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN THE AMOUNT OF SUCH 
LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS $100 BILLION.  IF THE AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES 
FOR ALL INSURERS EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE MAY BE REDUCED.

Acceptance or Rejection of Terrorism Insurance Coverage

I hereby elect to purchase terrorism coverage for a prospective premium of $33.00

I hereby decline to purchase terrorism coverage for certified acts of terrorism. I understand 
that I will have no coverage for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism.

Policyholder/Applicant’s Signature

Eastern Tule Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Insurance Company

Allied World Specialty Insurance Company
Print Name Policy Number

Date



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.b 

Report on status of General Plan Referral Application 
for the Draft GSP 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:    General Plan Referral Application for Draft GSP 

Submitted By:   Executive Director  

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes) 

 

Executive Summary: 

The Board Authorized staff to submit a General Plan Referral Application and to enter into the 
associated Indemnification Agreement for the Draft GSP, pending legal review, at its June 6, 
2019 meeting. 

Following review by General Counsel Mauritson, it was recommended to no longer submit this 
Application nor to undertake the GPR Process. 

 

Background: 

n/a 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

A $300 research deposit was required for the GPR Application. As the Application will no longer 
be submitted, this deposit will be returned to ETGSA. 

Attachments: n/a 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 6.a 

Report on ongoing ETGSA outreach efforts 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:    Summary of June Outreach  

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes)  

 
Executive Summary: 

In addition to its regular Board and Committee Meetings and email correspondence to its 
Interested Parties List, ETGSA continues to conduct community outreach regarding SGMA, 
ETGSA, and the development of ETGSA’s Draft GSP through a variety of events and other media. 

A summary of ETGSA’s outreach efforts in June is provided below: 

• June 5, 2019 (Panel) – ETGSA Executive Director participated in a panel on Demand 
Reduction Actions at the GRA 2nd Annual GSA Summit in Fresno. 

• June 12, 2019 (Meeting) – ETGSA Executive Director presented on SGMA to the Tulare 
County Planning Commission 

• June 18th, 2019 (Event) – KTWD, a member agency of ETGSA, hosted a SGMA Outreach 
Event for their growers at the Elk’s Lodge (tentative) in Delano at 1pm. 

Background: 

SGMA requires that, “The groundwater sustainability agency shall consider the interests of all 
beneficial uses and users of groundwater, as well as those responsible for implementing 
groundwater sustainability plans…” (WAT § 10723.2). ETGSA undertakes outreach efforts, both 
individually and in collaboration with regional partners, to ensure that these interests are 
considered and provided with information pertinent and relevant to SGMA and the 
development of ETGSA’s GSP. The ETGSA Board of Directors adopted a Communication and 
Engagement Plan on October 5, 2018 that serves as a living guide to ETGSA’s outreach efforts. 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 
ETGSA’s Board and Committee meetings occur on a regular basis and, save for closed session as 
permitted pursuant the Brown Act, are open to the public.  

ETGSA continues to encourage its stakeholders to engage the Agency with other opportunities 
for outreach. 

 

Fiscal Impact: n/a 

 

Attachments: n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 7.a 

Receive Finance Committee Monthly Reports 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:    Summary of Most Recent ETGSA Finance Committee Meetings 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes) 

 
Executive Summary: 

Meeting #1 - The ETGSA Finance Committee met on June 6, 2019. Below is a summary of the 
meeting: 

Directors Present – Director Kisling, Director Schneider 

Directors Absent – Director Holmes 

Summary of Actions Taken -  

• Approved the Minutes of May 13, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting (Unanimous) 
• Recommended approval of the 4Creeks scope of work and budget at $95,000 

(Unanimous). 
• Recommended approval of amendment to the lease between ETGSA and 881 W. 

Professional Center (Unanimous) 
• Recommended approval of the proposed ETGSA FY 2019-2020, with the following 

updates: an additional $100,000 added to “Other Professional Services,” an additional 
$30,000 added to “Other General Assc. Dues”, an additional $50,000 added to “DMS 
Development & Expense”, with the 10% contingency updated to reflect these additions 
to create a total budgeted amount of $1,340,680.00. (Unanimous) 

• Moved to recommend approval to pay the bills (Unanimous) 

Meeting #2 - The ETGSA Finance Committee met on June 18, 2019. Below is a summary of the 
meeting: 

Directors Present – Director Kisling, Director Schneider, Director Holmes 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 
Directors Absent – none 

Summary of Actions Taken -  

• Approved the Minutes of June 6, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting. (Unanimous) 
• Approved the payment of the bills. (Unanimous) 

Meeting #3 - A report on the Meeting of the ETGSA Finance Committee, scheduled to be held 
on July 2, 2019, will be given verbally. 
 
Background: 

n/a 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

n/a  

 
Attachments: 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 7.b 

Receive Stakeholder Committee Meeting Monthly 
Report 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:  Summary of Most Recent ETGSA Stakeholder Committee Meeting 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes) 

 
Executive Summary: The ETGSA Stakeholder Committee met on June 13, 2019. Below is a 
summary of the meeting: 

Stakeholder Committee Members Present – Member O’Sullivan, Member Briano, Member 
Guthrie, Member Parsons, Member Watkins, Member Mulholland, Member Inestroza, Member 
Castle 

Stakeholder Committee Members Absent – Member Konda 

Summary of Actions Taken -  

• Approved the Minutes of May 23, 2019 Joint Stakeholder and Executive Committee 
Minutes (Unanimous) 

Background: n/a 

Fiscal Impact: n/a  

Attachments: n/a 

 

 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 7.c 

Receive Executive Committee Meeting Monthly Report 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:  Summary of Most Recent ETGSA Executive Committee Meeting 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes) 

 
Executive Summary: The ETGSA Stakeholder Committee met on June 13, 2019 23, 2019. Below 
is a summary of the meeting: 

Stakeholder Committee Members Present – Chair Borba, Member Keller, Member Domondon, 
Member Etchegary, Member Geivet, Member Limas, Member Reed, Member Fowler 

Stakeholder Committee Members Absent – Member England, Member Dalke 

Summary of Actions Taken -  

• Approved the Minutes of May 23, 2019 Joint Stakeholder and Executive Committee 
Minutes (Unanimous) 

Background: n/a 

Fiscal Impact: n/a  

Attachments: n/a 

 

 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 8.a 

Review the Financial Statements; consider ratification 
of bills paid and approval of bills to be paid 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors  

 
Subject:  ETGSA Financial Statements and Bills (Paid and to be Paid) 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Move to ratify the bills paid and approve the bills to be paid  

 
Executive Summary: 

n/a 

 
Background: 

n/a 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

n/a 

 
Attachments: 

• Exhibit A: ETGSA Financial Statements (Unaudited) 
o Note – To be distributed on the day of the Board Meeting 

 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 8.b 

Consider approval of Quarterly Call for Funds 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors  

 
Subject:  First Quarterly Call for Funds for FY20 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Approve a quarterly call for funds in the amount of $335,170. 

 
Executive Summary: 

Staff recommends making a Quarterly Call for Funds in the amounts described in Exhibit A, per 
the beginning of FY20. 

 
Background: 

The ETGSA Board of Directors approved the FY19-20 Budget at its June 6, 2019 meeting. ETGSA 
is currently funded via Member Agency Call for Funds, wherein Member Agencies pay a 
proportionate share of the Agency’s Budget based on the jurisdictional area they cover within 
the Agency. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

n/a 

 
Attachments: 

• Exhibit A: First Quarterly Call for Funds 

 

 

 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 9.a 

Report on Tule Subbasin Coordination and TH&Co Task 
Items 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:  Updates Regarding Tule Subbasin Coordination and Task Items 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes)  

 
Executive Summary: 

Coordination and TH&Co Task Items – Thomas Harder and Company and the Tule Subbasin GSA 
Staff met on June 19, 2019 and June 28, 2019 to discuss updates and next steps related to 
various scopes of work being undertaken by TH&Co. Tule Subbasin Staff have agreed to begin 
meeting twice per month in order to ensure satisfactory coordination and GSP development. 

Below is a summary of the updates, anticipated deliverables, and associated Exhibits: 

• A new draft Subbasin Monitoring Plan was provided on June 21, 2019 
o GSA Staff were asked to provide comments prior to July 17, 2019 
o The Monitoring Plan proposes a Subsidence Monitoring Area (see Exhibit A) 

• A new draft Subbasin Setting was provided on June 20, 2019; see Exhibit B for a 
selection pertinent new information and exhibits 

o GSA Staff were asked to provide comments prior to July 17, 2019 
• A Scope of Work and Cost Estimate for Contractor Bid Services to Drill/Construct 

Monitoring Wells (See Exhibit C) presented by TH&Co on June 28, 2019 and accepted 
o All costs included in the estimate are proposed to be funded by remaining Prop 1 

Grant funds 
• Drilling of new monitoring wells with the Technical Support Services (TSS) Grant is still 

on hold, as DWR is evaluating its CEQA approach; DWR has not provided a time estimate 
as to when funds will be released to begin drilling new wells 

• CalPoly ITRC’s draft METRIC ET and NTWGW Data was viewed and discussed by GSA 
Staff.  



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

o Crop Consumptive Use appears to have marginally declined since 1990 through 
2017 

o NTFGW estimates need to be updated with surface water deliveries 
appropriately clipped to individual irrigation district boundaries 

o 4Creeks is still assembling the data into presentable forms for discussion 
• TH&Co will be presenting a “Cause of Subsidence & Legacy Analysis Study” Scope of 

Work prior to July 17, 2019 
o The intent of the study is to further investigate current and historical causes of 

subsidence, and better evaluate the contribution of legacy overdraft in the 
context of future contributions to subsidence 

• Funding via Proposition 68 is currently being evaluated; a proposed scope and budget is 
anticipated prior to July 17, 2019 

• A general discussion has begun regarding the topic of “mitigation” of impacts resulting 
from future pumping above the sustainable yield 

• The next Technical Advisory Committee meeting has been scheduled for July 17, 2019 at 
2pm at the Heritage Center (4500 S. Laspina St, Tulare, CA) 

Background: 

ETGSA is member to the Tule Subbasin MOU Group. This group consists of the various GSAs 
overlying the Tule Subbasin. More information can be found at: www.tulesgma.com  

The Tule Subbasin GSAs have collectively engaged and contracted TH&Co to undertake various 
scopes of work to assist them in the completion of their GSPs, Coordination Agreement, and 
various technical matters that must be addressed in a coordinated Subbasin manner. 
Additionally, R.L. Schafer serves as the Tule Subbasin Coordinator and David De Groot/4Creeks 
serves as Technical Lead/Grant Lead/Secretary. Lower Tule River Irrigation District serves as 
Fiscal Agent to the Tule Subbasin MOU Group. 

Fiscal Impact: n/a 

Attachments: 

• Exhibit A: Proposed Subsidence Monitoring Area 
• Exhibit B: Presentation – Basin Setting Updates 
• Exhibit C: TH&Co Scope of Work for Contractor Bid Services re: Drilling and Construction 

of Monitoring Wells (dated June 28, 2019)  

 

http://www.tulesgma.com/


 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 9.b 

Report on Inter-Basin and other Regional Stakeholder 
Coordination 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:  Inter-Basin and Regional Coordination 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for information purposes) 

 
Executive Summary: 

ETGSA continues to undertake various efforts to coordinate and collaborate with regional 
partners and stakeholders. Below is a summary of these efforts: 

• County of Tulare Staff and GSA Leads for GSAs within Tulare County have been meeting 
monthly since February to discuss coordinating GSP development, GSP implementation, 
and role coordination between the GSAs and the County 

• The “Water Blueprint for the San Joaquin Valley” has been established as a 501(c)(3) 
and 501(c)(4). The group is working to develop water supply and infrastructure 
strategies to effectively address the groundwater overdraft needs across the San 
Joaquin valley.  

o Entities looking to participate in the development of this Blueprint may choose 
to provide financial contributions. 

o The group is presently looking to fund an economic study that analyzes the 
impact of SGMA implementation within the San Joaquin Valley 

• The Tule River Basin IRWMP Advisory Group met on June 24, 2019 to discuss DAC and 
Implementation projects to be recommended for funding 

 
Background: n/a 

Fiscal Impact: n/a 

Attachments: n/a 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 10.a 

Report on ETGSA GSP Drafting 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:  Drafting of the ETGSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Defer to Board direction  

 
Executive Summary: 

Staff and 4Creeks, Inc. continue to develop the Draft GSP document. Policy direction is sought 
from ETGSA’s Committees and the Board as necessary, and technical matters are further 
informed by ongoing Subbasin work being undertaken by Thomas Harder & Company 
(hereafter, “TH&Co”). It is generally anticipated that the Draft GSP will be completed by August 
2019, due to delays at the Subbasin level and various TH&Co work products that must be 
coordinated.  

Below is a summary of the current status of the Draft GSP: 

• Sections 1-3 (Introduction, Agency Information, Description of Plan Area): Subject to 
final adjustments, these Sections are generally complete. Final adjustments include: 

o Descriptions of cost and funding (contingent upon projects, management 
actions, and monitoring plan) 

• Section 4 (Basin Setting): TH&Co has provided an updated Basin Setting; this document 
is currently under review by Tule Subbasin Staff with comments to be provided by July 
17, 2019 

• Section 5 (Sustainable Management Criteria): General agreement at the Subbasin-level 
has provided direction for this section’s development. Staff is working with 4Creeks to 
evaluate historical and trending groundwater levels at Representative Monitoring Sites 
to establish Minimum Thresholds and assess local impacts 

• Section 6 (Monitoring Networks): TH&Co has provided an updated Monitoring Plan; 
this document is currently under review by Tule Subbasin Staff with comments to be 
provided by July 17, 2019 

• Chapter 7 (Projects and Management Actions): This section is generally complete 



 

 ETGSA Board Meeting  
 July 2, 2019 

 
 
 
Background: 

Development of the ETGSA Draft GSP is being undertaken by Staff with assistance from 4-
Creeks, Inc. and incorporation of work completed on behalf of the Tule Subbasin GSAs by 
TH&Co. 4-Creeks and Staff meet twice per month (at minimum) to review progress, review 
recommendations and Board decisions, and identify next steps 

The latest version of ETGSA’s Draft GSP Creation Schedule can be found on its website at 
www.easterntulegsa.com/resources/#gsp. It is generally anticipated that the Draft GSP will be 
completed by August 2019, due to delays at the Subbasin level and various TH&Co work 
products that must be coordinated. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

n/a 

 
Attachments: 

n/a 

http://www.easterntulegsa.com/resources/#gsp



